
(b)(i) 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 

TS!!SC'l' 

Verbatim Transcript of Combatant Status Review Tribunal Heanng for JS~ 10024 

REPORTER; 

RECORDER: 

PRESIDENT: 

RECORDER: 

RECORDER: 

PRESI DEf\:T: 

RECORDER: 

PRESIDENT: 

RECORDER: 

REPORTER: 

PRESIDENT: 

OPENING 

On the record 

All rise. 

Remain seated and come to order. Go ahead. Recorder. 

This Tribunal is being conducted at 1328 March I 0. 200 ·on board C .S. Naval 
Base Guantanamo Bav. Cuba. The following personnel are present: 
Captain (b)(6) United States Navy, President 
Lieutenant Colonel b) 6) • Cnited States Air force, Member 
Lieutenant Colonel (b)(6) United States Marine (,lTps, Member 
Lieutenant Colonel (b)(6) , United States Air Fnrce. Personal 
Represemati>e 
Language Analysis (b)(6) ----........... Gunnery Sergeant (b)(6) l nited States Marine Corps. Reporter 
Lieutenant Colone·~~:':')--..,, United States Army, Recorder 
Captain (b)(6) 1s e gc Advocate member .}fthe Tribunal. 

OATH SESSION 1 

All Ri:>c. 

The Recorder will be sworn. Do you, Lieutenant ColoneJl(b)(6) I 
solemnly swear that you will faithfully perform the duties as Recorder assigned in 
this Tribunal so help you Go<l'1 

I do. 

The Reporter will now be sworn. The Recorder will administer Inc oath. 

lJo you Gunnery Sergeant l(b)(6) pwear or affirm that y<iu will faithfully 
dis~~harge your duties as Reporter assigned in this Tribunal ro help you God? 

I do. 

The Translator will be sworn. 
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RECORDER: Do you swear or amnn that you will faithfully perfonn the duties of Translator in 
the case now in hearing so help you God? 

TRANSLATOR: l do 

PRESIDENT: We will take a brief recess now in order in to bring Detainee into the room. 
Recorder note the date and time. 

RECORDER: The time is l 10 vrn hours on 10 March 2007 This Tribunal is in now in recess. 
(The Tribunal r~esscd at 13 30, I 0 March 2007 The members withdrew from the 
hearing room.I 

RECORDER: 

PRESIDENT: 

PRESIDENT: 

DETAfNEE: 

PRESIDENT: 

DETAfNEE: 

PRESIDENT: 

PRESIDENT: 

PRESIDENT: 

PRESIDENT: 

CONVENING AUTHORITY 

All Rise. 
{The Tribunal reconvened and the members entered the room at 1334, 10 March 
2007.) 

This hearing will come to order. Plca.-;c be seated. 

Before we begin, Khalid Sheikh Muhammad. I understand you speak and 
W1dcrstand English. Is that correct? 

lDctaincc nods his head in affinnativc]. 

Alright. Are you comfortable in continuing in English or would you like 
everything translated in Arabic? 

Everything in English but if! have a problem the linguis: will help me. 

We will proceed in English. ff you indicate to me that you would like something 
translated we will go ahead and do that. Alright'? 

This Tribunal is convened by order of the Director, Comhatant Stanis Review 
1 ribunals under the provisions of his Order of22 February 2007. 

This Tribunal wiil determine whether Khalid Sheikh Muhammad meets the 
criteria to be designated as an enemy combatant against the United States or its 
coalition partners or otherwise meets the criteria to be designated as an enemy 
combatant. 

OATH SESSION 2 

The members of this Tribunal shall now be sworn All riM:. 

Ts.•;s(:11 
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Do you swear or arnrm that you will faithfully perform :vour duties as a member 
of this Tribunal; that you will impartially examine and inquire into the matter now 
before you according to your conscience, and the laws and regulations provided: 
that you will make such findings of fact and conclusion!> as arc supported by the 
evidence presented: that in determining those facts, you will use your professional 
knowledge, best judgment, and common sense: and that vou will make such 
findings as are appropriate according to the best of your understanding of the 
rules, regulations, and laws govcming this proceeding, and guided by your 
concept of justice so help you God? 

I do 

The Recorder will now administer the oath to the Persondl Represl!ntativc. 

Do you swear or affirm that you will faithfully perform the duties of Personal 
Representative in this Tribunal so help you God? 

PERSONAL 
REPRESENTATIVE: I do. 

PRESIDENT: 

PRESIDENT: 

PRESlDENT: 

PRESIDENT: 

PRESIDENr: 

PRESIDENT: 

PRESIDENT: 

Please be seated. 

The Recorder, Reporter. and Translator have previously ·1een sworn. 

EXPLANATION OF PROCEEDINGS 

Khalid Sheikh Muhammad, you are hereby advised that !he following applies 
during this hearing: 

You may be present at all open sessions of the Trihunal However, if you become 
disorderly. you will be removed from the hearing. and the Tribunal will continue 
to hear evidence in your absence. 

You may not be compelled to testify at this Tribunal. H11wever. you may testify if 
you wish to do so. Your testimony can he under oath or unsworn. 

You may havl! the assistance ofa Perronal Representative at the hearing. Your 
assigned Personal Representative is present. 

You may present evidence to this Tribunat mcluding the testimony of witnesses 
who are reasonably available and whose testimony is relevant to this hearing. 
You may question witnesses testifying at the Tribunal. 

T~/l?iC!'. 
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DETAINEE: 

PRESIDENT: 

DETAINEE: 

PRESIDENT: 

DETAINEE: 

PRESIDEN·1·: 

DETAINEE: 

PRESIDENT: 

PERSONAL 
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You may examine documents or statements offered into 1~vidcnce other than 
classified infonnation. However, certain documents may be partially masked for 
security reasons. 

Khalid Sheikh Muhammad, du yuu understand this proet·~s'' 

Yes. If! have question can I ask you? 

Yes, you may. 

About the testimony which I ask about the witnesses. 

Yes. I'm going to address the witnesses shortly. So. if you will bear with us I will 
take that up in a few moments. 

Okay. 

Oo you havt:: any questions concerning the Tribunal proct.·ss? 

Okay by me. 

PRESENTATION OF UNCLASSIFIED INFORMATION 

Personal Representative, please provide the Tribunal with the Detainee Election 
Form 

REPRESENTATIVE:! am handing the Tribunal the Detaint:e Election Fonn. which was previously 
marked as Exhibit D-a. 

PRESIDENT: 

PRESIDENT: 

RECORDER: 

A !right, the Tribunal has received Exhibit D-a that indicates the Detainee wants to 
participate in the Tribunal and wants the assistance of th\· Personal 
Representative. 

RECORDER PRESENTS UNCLASSIFIED 

Recorder, please provide the Tribunal with the unclassiftt.:d evidence. 

I am handing the Tribunal what has previously been marked as Exhibit R-1. the 
unclassified summary of the evidence that relates to this Dctainec's status as an 

I SU~Cl' 
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enemy combatant. A translated copy of this exhibit was provided to the Personal 
Representative in advance of this hearing for presentation to the Detainee. In 
addition, I am handing to the Tribunal the following unclassified exhibits, marked 
as Exhibit R-2. Copies of these Exhibits have previous!) heen provided to the 
Personal Representative. {Documents presented to Tribunal) 

Recorder, please read the unclassified summary of evidence for the record. But 
before you proceed. Khalid Sheikh Muhammad, let me remind you tlun you must 
not comment on this evidence at this time. You will be provided with an 
opportunity shortly to provide any comments that you would like. Recorder, 
please proceed. 

The following facts support the determination that the Dt·tainee is an enemy 
combatant: 

Paragraph a. On the morning of 11 Septcmhcr 2001. four airliners traveling nver the United States 
were hijacked. The flights hijacked were: American Airlines Flight 11, Unitnl Airlines Flight 175, 
American Airlines Flight 77, and United Airlines Flight 93. At approximately 8:46 a.m., American 
Airlines Flight 11 crashed into the North Tower of the World Trade Center. resulting in the collapse of 
the tower at approximately l 0:25 a.m. At approximately 9:05 a.m., lJnited Airlines Flight 175 crashed 
into the South Tower of the World Trade Center, resulting in the collapse of the tower at 
approximately 9:55 11.m At approximately 9:37 a.m., American Airlines Flight 77 crashed into the 
southwest side of the Pentagon in Arlington, Virginia. At approximately I 0:{1J a.m .. United Airlines 
Flight 93 crashed in Stoney Creek Township. Pennsylv<mia. These crashes an<l subsequent damage to 
the World Trade Center and the Pentagon resulted in lhe deaths of2.972 pcrs11ns in New York, 
Virginia. and Pennsylvania. 

Paragraph h. The Detainee served as the head of the al Qaida military commutce and was Usama bin 
Laden's principal al Qaida operative who directed the 11 September 2001 attacks in the United States. 

Paragraph c. Jn an interview with an al Jazeera reporter in June 2002, the lkt..iincc stated he was the 
head of the al Qaida military committee. 

Paragraph d. A computer hard drive seized during the capture of the DetaincL· contained information 
about the four airplanes hijacked on 11 September 2001 including code name ... , airline company, night 
number. target, pilot name and background information. and names of the hijackers. 

Paragraph e. A computer hard dnve sei7.ed <luring the capture of the Detainee contained photographs 
of l 9 individuals identified as the 11 September 200 I hijackers. · 

TS1/SCI:. 
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Paragraph f. A computer hard drive seized during the capture of the Detainee contained a document 
that listed the pilot license fees for \.1oharnmad Atta and biographies for some ofthc 11 September 
2001 hijackers. 

Paragraph g. A computer hard drive seized during the capture of the Detainee contained images of 
passports and au image of Mohammad Atta. 

Paragraph h. A computer hard drive seized during the capture of the Detainee contained transcripts of 
chat sessions belonging to at least one of the 11 September 2001 hijackers. 

Paragraph i. The Detainee directed an individual lo travel Lo the United Statef to ca<>e targets for a 
second wave of attacks. 

Paragraph j. A computer hard drive sei7.ed during the capture of the Detainee contained three letters 
from Vsruna bin Laden. 

Paragraph k. A computer hard dnve seized during the capture of the Detainee contained spreadsheets 
that describe money assistance to families of known al Qaida members. 

Paragmph I. The Detainec's name was on a list in a computer seized in connc•.:tion with a threat.to 
United States airlines, United States embassies and the Pope. 

Paragraph m. The Detainee wrote the hojinka plot. the airline bomb plot which was later found on his 
nephew Ramzi Yousefs computer. 

Paragraph n. The bojinka plot is also known as the Manila air investigation. 

Paragraph o. The Manila air investigation uncovered the Detainee conspired with others to plant 
explosive devices aboard American jetliners while those aircraft were scheduted to be airborne and 
loaded with passengers on their way to the linited States 

Paragraph p. The Detainee was in charge of and funded an attack against Unit..:d States military vessels 
heading to the port ofD.iibuuti. 

Paragraph q. A computer hard drive seized during the capture of the Detainee contained a letter to the 
United Arab Emirates threatening attack if their government continued to help the United States. 

Paragraph r. During the capture of the Detainee, information used exclusively by al Qaida operational 
managers to communicate with operatives was found. 

Paragraphs. The Detainee received funds from Kuwaiti-ba<;cd Islamic extremist groups and delivered 
the funds to al Qaida members. 
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Paragraph t. A computer hard drive seized during the capture of the Detainee contained a document 
that summarized operational procedures and training requirements of an al Qaida cell. 

Paragraph u. A computer hard drive sci7..ed during the capture of the Dctainet: contained a list of killed 
and woum.led al Qaida martyrs. 

And lastly. Paragraph v. Passport photographs of al Qaida operatives were sem:d during the capture of 
the Dctainl:!e. 

RH'.ORDER: 

PRESIDENT: 

PRESIDEJ\'.T: 

PERSONAL 

Sir, this concludes the summary of unclassified evidenc<' 

Very well. 

Personal Representative, docs the Detainee have any evidence to present to this 
Tribunal? 

REPRESEJ\:TATIVE: Yes, sir. I am handing to the Tribunal the following unclassified exhibits 
marked as Exhibits D-h through D-d. Copies of these cxnibits have been 
previously provided to the Recorder. !Docwncnts presented to Tribunal} 

PRESIDEKT: Exhibit D-b appears to be a statement !hat the Detainee has provided. 

PERSONAL 
REPRESENTATIVE: Yes, Sir. 

PRESIDENT: Alright. And Exhibit D-c contains hm11.l written notes that appear to be Arabic and 
English as well as the typed version of that. ls that correct? 

PERSONAL 
REPRESENTATIVE: Yes. Sir 

PRESIDENT: Alright. And D-d is a written statement regarding alleged abuse or treatment that 
the Detainee received. 

PERSONAL 
REPRESENTATIVE Yes, Sir. 

PRESIDENT: Alright. We will go into those shortly. 
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PRESIDENT: 

DETAINEE: 

PRESIDENl: 

RECORDER: 

PRESIDENT· 

RECORDER: 

PRESIDENT: 

RF.CORDER: 

RECORDER: 

PRESIDENT 

PRESIDENT: 

RECORDER: 

PRESlDENT. 

P.R.ESIDENT: 

PERSONAL 
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Khalid Sheikh Muhammad, you may now make an oral ~tatement to the Tribunal, 
and you have the assistance of your Personal Representative in doing so. Do you 
wish to make an oral statement to this Tribunal"! 

lie will start, the Personal Representative; PR will read then later I will comment. 

Ver~ well. you may proceed. 

Sir, would you hold one moment? 

Yes 

Ah. before the Detainee makes a statement. ah. I'd like tv ah. 

Question of the oath? 

Ah, no sir. 

Concerning classified evidence. 

Very well. 

Do )OU have any further evidence to present at this time. Recorder? 

Mr. Presid~·n:, I have no furtht·r unclassified evidence fo~ the Tribunal but I 
respectfully request a dosed Trihunal session at an appropriate time to present 
cla:mficd evidence rele\.ant tu this Dctainee's status as an enemy combatant. 

Very well, your request for a closed scssmn is granted and will he takt.'11 up in due 
course. 

You may proceed, PR 

REPRFSENTATIVE: The Detainee responds to the unclassified summary ot evidence with the 
following key points. 

PERSONAL 
REPRESENTATIVE: "Some paragraphs under paragraph number 1, lead sentence arc not related to 

the context or meaning of the aforementioned lead sentence Fur example, 
paragraph 3-a is only infonnalion from news or a historical account of events 
on 11 September 2001. and note with no specific linkage being made in this 
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D.ETAINEE: 

PERSONAL 
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paragraph to me or the definition of Enemy Combatant. As another example. 
sub-paragraph 3-n makes no linkage to me or to the de linition of Enemy 
Cnmbatant." 

Arc they following along? 

REPRESENTATIVE: Ah, they they have that in front of them for reference. 

PRESIDENT: Yes. 

DETAINEE: Okay. 

PERSONAL 
REPRESENTATIVE. Second main point "There arc two false statements in the Summary of 

Evidence. Sub-paragraph 3-c is false. J never stated to the Al Jazeera reporter 
that I was the head of the al Qaida military committee. Also, sub-paragraph 3-s is 
false l did not receive any funds from Kuwait ·• 

PERSONAL 
REPRESENTATIVE: Point number 3. "'Tiwre is an unfair 'stacking of evidence' in the way the 

Summary of Evidence is structured. In other words, there arc several sub. 
paragraphs under parent-paragrdph 3 which should be c0mbincd into one sub­
paragraph to avoid creating the fal:;e perception that there are more allegations or 
statements against me specifically than there actually arc. For example, sub­
paragraphs 3-m through 1-o, which pertain to the ho1inka plot should be 
combined into one paragraph. a<> should paragraphs 3-a through 3-h, which 
pertain to 9/1 l ." 

PERSONAL 
REPRESENT/\ TIVE: Lastly, my name is misspelled in the Summary of Evidence. It should be S-h­

a-i-k-h or S-h-e-i-k-h, but not S-h+y-k-h, as il is in the \Ubject line. 

PRESIDENT: Would you like to add anything to that, Khalid Sheikh '.\1uhrunmad ? 

PERSONAL 
REPRESENTATIVE: Final statement. 

DETAINEE: 

PRESIDENT: 

No. I just want to ask about witnesses. 

Okay. ah, let's finish with these then I will get to the witnesses. 

TS.''SCI/ 
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DETAINEE: Okay. 

PRESIDENT: Try to keep it in order. 

PRESIDENT: You want to continue. PR? Do you have have another statement'? 

PERSONAL 
REPRESENTATIVE: That concludes this Detainee':; response to the. ah, undassified summary of 

evidence. sir. 

PRESIDENT: Oh. 

PRESIDENT: 

PRESIDENT: 

RECORDER: 

PRESIDENT. 

PRJ:::SlDENl: 

PRESIDENT: 

PRESIDENT: 

PRESIDENT: 

CALLING OF WITNESSES 

We will now allow for the calling of witnesses. All witnesses called before this 
Tribunal may be questioned by the Detainee if present, the Personal 
Representative. the Recorder. and the Tribunal Members 

Docs the Recorder have any witnesses to present'? 

No. sir. 

Alright. 

horn the Detainee Election Fom1 and I was informed eariicr tha( the Detainee 
requested the presence of two witnesses to testify here today. Ramzi bin al-Shibh 
and Mustafa Hawsawi. The Detainee believes the witne~ses can provide 
testimony related to the Dctaiuec's actions specified in the unclassified summary 
of the evidence. 

I have had the opportunity to review the request for witm·sses and I have made 
some findings and rm going lo place them on the record now and when l 
conclude that. Khalid Sheikh Muhammad, you may respond to that if you'd like. 

First th<: request for Ramz1 bin ul-Shib. the proffer of the testimony from the 
fktainee wm; that Ramzi is alleged to have been present during the al Jazeera 
interview in June 2002 during which it is said the Detaim•e claimed to be head of 
a.I Qaida Military Conunittee. The Detainee claims he never stated that, to be the 
head of the Military Committee. during the interview and states that Rumzi, if 
called. can confim1 this. 

This witness is not relevant in the President's view for the following reasons. In 
the totality of the circumstances and given the nature and quality of the other 
unclassified evidence. the Dctaincc's alleged statements <IS reported in al Jazeera 

rsi!S('if-
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are of limited value and negligible r!.!levancy to the issue 1.1f c<1mbatant status. As 
such, any corroboration or contradiction by the proffered witness is not relevant. 
The creditability detenninations wilh regard to R-2. which is the al Jazeera anicle. 
can be made by the Tribunal without the proffered testimony. As such. the 
Dctainee's request for 1he production of that wimess is d.:nicd. 

PRESIDENT: As w the m1uest for Mustafa Hawsawi, ah, it is proffered thar Hawsawi, if called, 
could testify that the computer/hard drive referenced in the unclassified summary 
was not this Dctainee's property and that the place of the Detainee's capture was 
not the house of the Detainee. In the President's view this testimony is not 
relevant to the issues regarding the Detainee's capture or his combatant status for 
the following reasons. 

PRESIDFi'\T: Whether the Detainee had actual legal tirle or ownership 1)f the computer/hard 
drive or the house where the capture took place is mc!cv.rnt to the determination 
of the Detainee 's status as an enemy combatant. Based <·n the proffer, if true, 
Hawsawi's testimony will not provide relevant infommtinn. ·me issue of 
oy,,11ership, while of some interest. is not relevant to statu!>. What is relevant is 
possession. usage. connection and presence. Hawsawi's testimony will not speak 
to any relevant information in regard to such points. As such, the request for the 
production of that witness is denied. 

PRESIDENT: If you would like to respond to that, I'll hear you. 

DETArNEE: Most of these facts which be written arc related to this hard drive. And more than 
eleven of these facts are related to this computer. Other things are which is very 
old even nobody can hring any witnesses for that as you written here if it will be 
ah a value for you for the witness near by you will do it. mis computer is not for 
me. ls for Hawsawi himseff So I'm saying I need I laws.nvi because me and him 
we bnth been arrested day. Same way. So this computer is from him long time. 
And also the problem we arc not in court and we are not :udge and he is not my 
lawyer but the procedure has been written reported and the way has mostly as 
certain charged against me; tell him, (Arabic Phrase}. 

TRANSLATOR: [Translating] They arc only accusation::; 

DETArNEE: So accusations. And the accusations, they arc as you put for yourself ah definition 
for enemy combatant there are also many definitions for :hat accusation of fact or 
charges that has been written for any ah. {Arabic Phrase! 

TRANSLATOR: {Translating! Person is accused. 
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So. if l been accused then if you want to put facts againsr me also the definition 
for these facts. lf you now read number N now what is written the boiinka plot. 
Is known many lead investigation it is not related to anything facts to be against 
me. So when f said computer hard drivel hard disk. same thing. All these point 
only one witness he can say yes or not cause he is this computer is under his 
possession him computer. And also specifically if he said Mohammad Atta 
picture been this hard drive. I don't think this should acc~pted. There arc many 
I 00 thousand Americans who have a lot of picture on their computer. You cannot 
say I find Muhammad Atta on your computer then you u~e this fact against you. 
Or you find any files in your computer to be what about it·s mine, it's not my 
computer. If this witness. he will state that this known and here that has been 
ninety percent of what is written is wrong. And for Ram1.i, for reporter in 
Jazeera, he claimed that I state this one and you know thr media man. I low they 
are fashionable. What they mean in their own way in a \\hole different way. 
They just wrote it so he say I stale. But l never stated and I don't have any 
witnesses and witness are available here at Guantanamo. He is Detainee. He was 
with me. Which he been mostly in all my interview with him. Mc and them, 
there was three person, me and Ramzi and this reporter. <;o if you not believe me, 
not believe him, believe my witness Ramzi. Then he's v.hat he state the reporter 
most is false. I not denying that rm not an enemy combatant about this war but 
I'm denying the report. It not being wrincn in the proper way. Which is really 
facts and mostly just hcing gathered many infonnation. Oencral information that 
form in way of doing. to use in facts against me. 

I have heard and understood your argwncnt. In order for me to make my 
determinations regarding the production of witnesses I first have to believe that 
they are relevant for the reasons that I have slated. For tht• reasons! have stated, I 
do not believe they are relevant. Whether or not they may be available here on 
Guantanamo. is a second decision to be made, but only if I decide they arc 
relevant. T have heard your arguments. I noted them. However. my ruling 
stands. 

The Recorder has no witnesses, is that my understanding · 

No. sir. 

And there are no other approved witnesses to taken up. Ah. we will take a brief 
mmnent to review the w1classilicd evidence that we received so far and then we 
will pick back up in the proceeding. 

If I might ask a question real quick of the PR. This is the entire translation of the 
hand written noks? 
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TSsSCl.' 

PERSONAL 
REPRF.SENTATIVE: Yeah. The hand written notes are the Oetainee is on yd low. 

MEMBER: Yes. 

PERSONAL 
REPRESENTATIVE: and, then the next set of notel., hand written notes, arc the Linguist's tnmslalion 

and then the final hard copy printed that's, ah, that. .. 

MEMBER: Type written. 

PERSONAL 
REPRESENTATIVE: Typed from Linguist's notes. 

MEMBER: Type from Linguist's translations. Okay. 

PRESIDENT: Khalid Sheikh Muhammad. I did not offer you an oath early because I was 
informed by the Personal Representative that you would be making some 
statement later on in these proceedings rdevant to the truthfulness of your 
comments. So, if you would like to take an oath I would administer one to you 
hut I did unden-;tand that you going to make a statement. 

DETAINEE· In the final statement. I will explain why then. 

PRESIDENT: Alright. Thank you. (Tribunal pauses to review D-a thru D-d) 

MEMBER: Seen thosc. 

TRANSLATOR: Sir. 

PRESIOENT: Yes. 

TRANSi.A rOR: lie wanted me to translate a Koranic verse on rite spot. 

PRESIDENT: I will permit it. 

TRANSL/\ TOR: Thank you. 

Tlli\NSLATOR: Can I ask him for clarification'> 

PRESIDENT: Yes. 

PRESIDENT: Do you need a few more moment<;, Translator? 

.·Si.'SCJ: 
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TRANSLATOR: Yes. sir. about thirty seconds. 

PRF.SIDE~T: Go ahead and take your time 

TRANSLATOR: Would you me to read the English 1.ranslacion after he rc1d Arabic verse or would 
like him to read it. 

PRESIDENT: Yuu want to save that for later'> 

TRANSLATOR: (Nods headl 

PRESIDENT: Alright. 

PRESIDFNT: Lel me take up a few things that have come up as based •m my review of these 
documents that have been provided to us so far. D-d, appears to be a \\.Tittcn 
statement regarding certain treatment that you claim to have received at the hands 
of agents of the United Stated government as you indicated from the time of your 
capture in 2003 up until before coming here to Guantanamo in September 2006. 

PRESIDENT: ls that correct'? 

DETA.INFF: Yes. 

PRESIDENT: Alright 

PRESIDENT Now. I haven't seen any statements m lhc evidence we r1·ceivc so far that claim to 
come from you other than acknowledging whether you were or nol the head of the 
Military Committee Were any statements that you made as the result of any of 
the treatment that you received during that time frame foim 2003 to 2006? Did 
you make those statements because of the treatment you receive from these 
people? 

DETAINEE Statement for whom? 
(b )( 1) 

PRESIDENT: To any of these interrogators. (b )(3) NatSecAct 

DETAINEE: Cl/\ peonies. Yes. At the beginning when they transfe1,ed me lo 

(b )(3) NatSecAct 

After they shifted me to the 
man who wa:; torturing me he spent long lime with me. He stayed with me two 
years. Later we became friends and I told him about all these procedures against 
American constitution law. This what l understand he told me: you are not 
American and you arc not on American soil. So you cannot ask about the 
Constitution. 

(b)( 1) 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 
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PRESIDENT: What I'm trying lo get at is any statement that you made was it because of this 
treatment, to use your word, you claim torture. Do you make any statements 
because of that? 

TRANSLATOR: Sir. for clarification. 

PRESIDENT: Can you translate it? 

TRANSL.I\ rOR: I will translate in Arabic. 

PRESIDENT: Yes. 
(b)! 1) 

TRANS LA TOR: [Translating above l (b}l3) NatSecAct 

DcfAINEE: 

PRESIDENT: 

PRESIDENT: 

DETAINEE: 

PRESIDENT: 

DETAINEE: 

l ah cannot remember now because three years daily asking question. I be under 
questioning so m<my statement which been some of them I make up stories just 
location UBL. Where is he9 I don't know. Then he tort•Jre me. Then I said yes. 
he 1s in this area or this is al Qaida which l don't him. I ·>aid no, they torture me. 
Does he know you? I say don't him but how come he know you. I told him I'm 
senior man. Many people they know me which I don't them. I ask him even if he 
kne" George Bush. He said, yes f do. lie don't know ynu that not means its 
false. Then finally l sai<l yes I know him. Took me mon· then twelve persons. I 
said yes I know him. Which I don't him lhe some more. The orocedurc thev were 
given me picture for peoples which were in 
l mean CIA camps with Detainee. In the beginning almClst the four month hard 
time this time I. But later they did same thing because l transferred hard time 
then even I not remember the pictures. I said yes or not. lnis I said. 

Alright,! understand. 

Is there anything you would like to correct, amend, modify or explain to us from 
what you said back then? 

I want to just it is not related enemy combatant but I'm saying for you to be 
careful with people. That you have classified and um::las:;1ficd facts. My opinion 
to be fair with people. Because when I say, I will not regret when I say I'm 
enemy combatant. I did or not I know tl1ere are other but there are many 
Dctain<:es which you receive classified against them maybe, maybe not take away 
from me for many Detainees false witnesses. This only advice. 

So you arc aware that other ... 

Yes. 

__J_~ I/~{ "f/ 
~ 
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PRESIOENT 

DETAINEE: 

PRF.SrDE:-JT: 

DETAINEE: 

PRESIDENT: 

PRESIDE'.'fT: 

DETAJNl£ 

PRESIDENT: 

l'RESIDEN l': 

DETAINEE: 

PRtS!DENT: 

lJETAINEE: 

{b )( 1) 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 

People made false statement as a result of this'.' 

I did also 

lJh huh. 

I told him. I know him yes. There are and they are. Not even you show me. lbis 
I don't know him I never met him at all. So, unclassified which is both classified 
and unclassified so this is you know him you don't know him. You have to be 
fair with people. There are many many people which they have never been part 
of the Taliban. Afghanistan there have been many peopi1: arrested for cxrunplc 
people who have been arrested after October 200 I after make attack against 
Afghanistan many of them just arrive after they don't what has happen. When 
Russian came to Afghanistan they folt they went back but they did anything with 
Taliban and al Qaida then crone after that. I don't know why it was younger 
people same thing for Afghanis people they show Afghanis people. I will give 
example one. His name is Sayed Habib. This I remember. Him they found his 
name in my notes and I told them this note is old note and have people which 
even before al Qaida I know. And he is not. I le is one of my students and the 
Russian times and l don"t know him. Then they show mt.: his picture. He had 
been stripped and hanged and they said this man he said f labib. I told he is not al 
Qaida. After six months they show his picture again. They ask do you know him. 
did not release him. Then they told me he states he never saw you from ninety 
four. I said that is right. l never met him after ninety four. This one is example. 
:vtany people they show pictures which face 1 know but don't them because I was 
under pressure. Then I said ye .... 

Alright. 

Now what. 

For rne nothing which was recorded. For which is written here is not related 

I understand. 

I do note that in one of the exhibits you indicate you arc not under any pressure or 
durc'i~ today. ls that correct? 

That is about I'm hearing today. Ye~. 

So anything. 

Some of this information. I not state it to them. 

(b )( 1) 
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PRESIDENT: 

DETAINEE: 

PRESIDENT: 

DErAINEE 

PRESIDENT: 

PRESJDF.NT: 

PRESIDENT: 

PRESIDENT: 

DETAINEE: 

PRESIDENT: 

PERSONAL 

(b)(1) 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 

The infonruition that you are telling us today, so, we are dear. You do not believe 
you arc under any pressure or threat or duress to speak t11 us today, is that correct'! 

Yes, that's correct. 

Alright 

Now what you have told us about your previous treatment is on the record of 
these proceeding now and will be reported for any invcs:igation that may he 
appropriate. Also. we will consider what you have told us in making our 
dctcnnination regarding your enemy combatant status. 

I hope you will take care of other Detainees with what I ~aid. It's up to you. 

I will do as I've said. I'll see to it that it is reponed 

Alright. At this point, we arc going to go into the final statement hut I do want lo 
give the opportunity to the Recorder, PR, and Tribunal member to ask questions if 
they would like. So, what will do is proceed then to the Detainee's final 
statement and then I'll have a question and answer scssi0n following that. Alright 
just give me a moment. 

Alright. 

KJ1alid Sheikh Muhammad, this concludes the presentation of unclassified 
infonnation to the Tribunal. We are about to conclut.le the unclassified portion or 
the hearing. Do you wish to now make any final statemt·nt to the Tribunal? You 
have the assistance of your PR. 

I make a two part. Maybe he will read then I will g<> als\>. 

Very well. You may continue. 

REPRESENTATIVE: Mr. President, the Detainee has asked me to read his final statement to the 
Tribunal with the understanding he rnay interject or add :.tatements if he needs to. 
to correct what [say. According to the Detainee: 

"l hereby admit and affirm without duress to the following: 

1. I swore Bay'aat (ic., allegiance) to Sheikh Usama Bin Laden to conduct Jihad of self and 
money. and also llijrah {i.e .. expatriation 10 any location in the world where Jihad is required). 

2. I was a member of the Al Qaida Council. 

(b )( 1 > 
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3. I was the Media Operations Director for Al-Sahab. or 'The Clouds: under Dr Ayman /\!­
Zawahiri. Al-Sahab is the media outlet that provided Al-Qaida-spons11red infonnation to Al 
.laze::era. Four." 

DETArNEF: [speaking inaudihly to Personal Representative] 

PRESJDE;-.J I': Please tell. 

PERSONAL 
REPRESENTATIVE: In other channels or other media outlets. 

PRESIDE~T: Thank you. 

PERSONAL 
REPRESENTATIVE: tcontinumgj "4. I was the Operational Director for Sheikh Usama Bin Laden 

for the organizing, planning, follow-up, and execution of the 9/11 Operation under the Military 
Commander, Sheikh Abu Hafs Al-Masri Subhi Abu Sittah. 

5. I was the Military Operational Commamfor for all foreign operations around the world under 
the direction of Sheikh Usama Bin Laden imd Dr. Ayman Al-7.awahu1 

6. I was directly in charge, after the death of Sheikh Abu Hafs Af-Mai;ri Subhi Abu Sittah, of 
managing antl following up on the Cell for the Production of Biologital Weapons. such as 
anthrax and others, and following up on Dirty Bomb Operations on American soil. 

7. I was Emir (i.e., commander) of Beil Al Shuhada (i.e., the \ifartyrs' House) in the state of 
Kandahar. Afghanistan, which housed the 9'11 hijackers. There I was responsible for their 
training and readiness for the execution of the 9111 Operation. Also. I hereby admit and affim1 
without duress that I was a responsible participant, principal planner. Trainer, financier {via the 
rvlilitary Council Treasury), executor, amilor a personal participant in 1he following: 

I. I was responsible for the ! 993 World Trade Center Operation. 
2 I was responsihle for the 9/11 Operation, from A to Z. 
3. I decapitated with my blessed right hand the head oft.he American Jew, Daniel Pearl, in 

the city of Karachi, Pakistan. For those who would like to confirm, there arc pictures of 
me on the Internet holding his head. 

4. I was responsible for the Sime Bomber Operation to down two American airplanes. 
5. I was responsible for the Filka Island Operation in Kuwait that killed rwo American 

soldiers 
6. l was responsible for the bombing of a nightclub in Bali, Indonesia, which was 

frequented by British and Australian nationals. 
7. I was responsible for planning, training, surveying. and financing the ~cw (or Second) 

Wave attacks against the following skyscrapers after 9111: 
a. l .ihrary Tower, California 
b. Sears Towt;:r, Chicago. 
c. Plaza Bank. Washington stare. 

(b )( 1) 
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d. Thi! Empire State Building, New York City. 
8. I was responsible for planning, financing,&. follow-up of Operations to destroy 

American military vessels and oil tankers in the Straights of Hormuz, the Straights of 
Gibralter, and the Port of Singapore. 

9. Twas responsible for planning, training. surveying, and tinanc:ng for the Operation to 
bomb and destroy the Panama Canal. 

J 0. J was responsible for surveying and financing for the assassination of several former 
American Presidents. including President Carter. 

11. I was responsible for surveying. planning. and financing for the bombing of suspension 
bridges in Nev.. York. 

12. I was responsible for planning to destroy the Scars Tower by t>uming a few fuel or oil 
tanker trucks beneath it or around it. 

13. I was respunsible for planning, surveying. and financing for the operation to destroy 
I Icathrow Airport, the Canary Wharf Building. and Rig Ben on British soil. 

14. I was rcspt)nsiblc for planning. surveying. and financing for the destruction of many 
night clubs frequented by American and British citizens on Thuiland soil. 

15. I was responsible for surveying and financing for the destructi· m of the New York 
Stock Exchange and· other financial targets after 9/ 11. 

16. I was responsible for planning. financing, and surveying for the destruction of buildings 
in the Jsracli city of F.lat hy using airplanes leaving from Saudi Arabia 

17. I was responsibk for planning, surveying, and financing for the destruction of 
American embassies in Indonesia, Australia. and Japan. 

I 8. I was responsible for surveying and financing for the destructi• in of the Israeli embassy 
in India, Azerbaijan, the Philippmes. and Australia. 

19 I was responsible for surveying and financing for the destrueti•,)n of an Israeli 'El-Al' 
Airlines flight on Thailand soil departing from Bangkok AirpNt. 

20. I was responsible for sending several Mujahadeen into Israel tn conduct surveillance to 
hit several strategic targel<i deep in Israel. 

21. I wa<> responsible for the bombing of the hotel in Mombasa that is frequented by Jewish 
travelers via El-Al airlines. 

22. I was responsible for launching a Russian-made SA-7 surface-to-air missile on El-Al or 
other Jewish airliner dcpaning from Mombasa. 

23. I was responsible for planning and surveying to hit American l.irgets in South Korea, 
such as American military hases and a fow night clubs frcqucn:ed by American 
soldiers. 

24. I was responsible for financial. excuse me, I was responsible for providing linanc1al 
suppon to hit American. Jewish, and British targets in Turkey. 

25. I was responsible for surveillance needed to hit nuclear power f)lants that generate 
electricity in several U.S. states. 

26. I was responsible for planning, surveying, and financing to hit 'IAl'O I Icadquarters in 
Europe. 

TC't!C'l'IL­
~I 
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27 I was responsible for the planning and surveying needed to execute the Bojinka 
Operation. which was designed 10 down twelve American airrianes full of passengers. 
l personally monitored a round-trip. Manila-to-Seoul. Pan Am flight. 

28. I was responsible for the assassination attempt against President Clinton during his visit 
to the Philippines in 1994 or 1995. 

29. r was responsible for the assassination attempt against Pope John Paul the second while 
he was visiting the Philippines.'' 

DE T Al NEE: I was not responsible. but share. 

PERSONAL 
REPRESENlA rJVF: I shared responsibility. I will restate number twenty r:mc. 

29. ''( shared responsibility for the ao.;sassination attempt against P.ipe John Paul the second 
while he was visiting the Philippines. 

30. I was responsible for the training and financing for tltc assassi:1ation of Pakistan's 
President Musharaf. 

31. I was responsible f(.1f the attempt to destroy an American oil c1>mpany owned by the 
Jewish former Secretary of State. Henry Kissinger, on the Island of Sumatra. 
Indonesia." 

PERSONAL 
REPRESENTATIVE: Sir. that ctmcludcs the VYTitten portion of the Dctainec·s final statement and as 

he has alluded to earlier he has some additional comrncn•s he would like to make. 

PRESIDENT: 

DETAIN Et: 

Alright. Before you proceed, Khalid Sheikh Muhammad. the ~1atement that was 
just read by the Personal Representative, were those yoUI words? 

BEGIN DETAINEE ORAL STATEMENT 

Yes. And I want to add some of this one just for some writication. It like some 
operations before I join al Qaida. Before I remember al t~aida which is related to 
Bojinka Operation I went to destination involve to us in •>4. 95. Some Operations 
which means out of al Qaida. Ifs like beheading Daniel Pearl. It's not related to 
al Qaida. It was shared in Pakistani. Other group, Mujahadccn. The story of 
Daniel Pearl. because he stated for the Pakistanis, group •hat he was working with 
the hoth. His mission was in Pakistan to track about Richard Reed trip to Israel. 
Richard Recd, do you have trip9 You send it Israel to make set for targets in 
Israel. His mission in Pakistan from Israeli intelligence, \1osad, 10 make 
interview to ask about when he was there. Also, he mcnt111n to them he was both. 

{b )( 1) 
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He have relation with CIA people and were the Mosad. But be was not related to 
nl Qaida at all or UBL. It is related to the Pakistan Mujahadccn group. Other 
operations mostly are some word I'm not accurate in saymg. I'm responsible hut 
if you read the heading history. Tiie line there (Indicating to Personal 
Representative a place or Exhibit D-c). 

REPRESE'.'JT A rIVE: [Rcadingj "Also, hereby admit and affinn without dun:ss that I wa~ a 
responsible participanL principle planner, trainer, financier." 

DETAINEE: 

PRESIDE"JT· 

DETAfNEE: 

PRESIDE~T: 

DETAINEE: 

PRESIDENT: 

DETAI~EE: 

PRESIDENT: 

DETAINEE 

f-or this is not necessary as I responsible, responsible. But with in these things 
responsible participant in finances. 

I understand. I want to be clear. though. is you that were :he author of that 
document. 

That's right. 

That it is true? 

That· s true. 

Alright. You may continue with your statement 

Okay. I start in Arabic. 

Please. 

(through translator): In the name of God the most compassionate, the most merciful. and if any fail to 
retaliation by way of charity and. I apologize. I will start again. And if any fail 
tu Judge by the light of Allah has revealed. they arc no bc:ter than wrong doers. 
unbelievers. and the unjust. 

DETAINEE: For this verse. 1 not take the oath. Take an oath is a part •if your Tribunal and I'll 
nl'l accept it. To be or accept the Tribunal as to be, I'll a..:cept it That l'rn 
accepting American constitution. American law or whatever you are doing here. 
This is why religiously I cannot accept anything you do Just to explain for this 
one. does not mean I'm not saying that I'm lying. When i not take oath does not 
mean rm lying. You know very well peoples take oath and they will lie. You 
know the President he did this before he just makes his oath and he lied. So 
sometimes when I'm not making oath does not mean I'm lying. 
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I understand. 

Secnnd thing. When I wrote this thing, I mean. the PR he told me that President 
may stop you at anytime and he don't like big mouth nor you to talk too much. 
To be within subject. So, [will try to be within the enemy combatant sub_iect 

You can say whatever you'd like to say so long as it's relevant to what we arc 
discussing here today. 

Okay. thanks. 

What l wrote here. is not I'm making myself hero. when I said I was responsible 
for this or that. But your arc military man. You know very well there are 
language for any war. So. tht::rc are. we arc: when l admit•mg these things I'm not 
saying I'm not did it. l did it hut this the language of an} war. If America they 
want to invade Irnq they will not send for Saddam roses or kisses they send for a 
bombardment This is the best way if I want. If l' m figh! ing for anybody admit 
to them l'm American enemies. for sure. I'm American ;:nemies. llsarna bin 
I .aden, he did his best press conference m American media. Mr. John Miller he 
been there when he made declaration against Jihad, against America. And he said 
it is not no need for me now to make explanation of what he said hut mostly he 
said about American military presence in Arabian peninsula and aiding Israel and 
many things. So when we made any war against America we are jackals lighting 
in the nights. I consider myself. for what you are doing. a religious thing as you 
consider us fundamentalist. So, we derive from religious leading that we consider 
we and George Washington doing same thing. As consider George Washington 
as hero. Muslims many of them are considering Usama bm I .aden. He is doing 
same thing. I le is just fighting. He needs his independence. Even we think that, 
or not me only. Many Muslims, that al Qaida or Taliban •hey arc doing. They 
have been oppressed by America. This is the feeling of the prophet. So when we 
say we arc enemy combatant. that right. We arc. But I'm asking you again to be 
fair with many Detainees which are not enemy combatant. Because many of 
them have been unjustly arrested. Many. not one or two or three. Cause the 
definition you which wrote l'vcn from my view it is not fair. Because 1f I was in 
the first Jihad times Russia. So I have to be Russian enemy. But America 
suppllrtcd me in this because l 'm their alliances when I "·is fighting Russia. 
Same job I'm doing. I'm fighting. I wa:;; lighting there Hussia now I'm fighting 
America. So, many people who been in Afghanistan ncvi:r live. Afghanistan stay 
in but they not share Taliban or al Qaida. They been Russian time and they 
cannN go hack to their home with their corrupted government. They stayed there 
and when America invaded Afghanistan parliament. The•. had been arrest. They 
never have been with Taliban or the others. So many people consider them as 
enemy but they arc not. Because definitions arc very wide definition so people 
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tht:y came after October of2002, 2001 When America i11vaded Afghanistan, they 
just arrive in Afghanistan cause the hear there enemy. They don't know what it 
means al Qaida or Usama bin Laden or Taliban. They dun't care about these 
things. They heard they were enemy in Afghanistan the;. just arrived. As they 
hcar<l lirst timt: Russian invade Afghanistan. They arrive they fought when back 
than they came. They don't know what's going on and '!'alihan they been head of 
government. You consider me even Taliban even the prt·sident of whole 
government. Many people they join Taliban because they are the government. 
When Karzai they came they join Kar.zai when come thev join whatever public 
they don ·1 know what is going on. So, many Taliban tight even the be fighters 
because they _iusl because public. The government is Ta.iban then until now CIA 
don't have exactly definition well who is Taliban, who i~ al Qaida. Your Tribunal 
now are discussing be is enemy or not and that is one of vour jobs. So this is why 
you find many Afghanis people, Pakistanis people even, they don't know what 
going on they just hear they are fighting and they help Muslim in Afghanistan. 
Then what. There are some infidels which they came here and they have to help 
them. But thi::n there weren't any intend to do anything against America. Taliban 
:hcmsclves between Taliban they said Afghanistan which they never again against 
9/1 l operation. The rejection between senior of Taliban .>fwhat al Qaida arc 
doing. Many of Taliban rejected what they arc doing. Even many Taliban, they 
not agree about why we are in Afghanistan. Some of them they have been with 
us. Taliban never in their life at all before America invade them the intend to do 
anything against America. 11ll'y never bi::en with al Qaida. Does not mean we arc 
here as American now. They gave political asylum for many countries. They 
gave for Chinese oppositions or a North Korean but that foes not mean they arc 
with them same thing many of Taliban. They harbor us •ts al Qaida does not 
mean we are together. So, this is why I'm asking you to he fair with Afghanis 
and Pakistanis and many Arabs which been in Afghanistan. Many of them been 
unjustly. The funny story they been Sunni government they sent some spies to 
assassinate UBL then we arrested them sent them to Afghanistanffaliban. 
Taliban put them into prison. Americans they came and .mest them as enemy 
combatant. They brought them here. So. even if they arc my enemy but not fair 
to be there with me. This is what I'm saying. The way oflhe war. you know, 
very well, any 1.:ountry waging war against their enemy the language of the war 
are killing. If man and woman they be together as a marriage that is up to the 
kids. children. But if you and me, two nations. will be together in war the others 
arc victims. This is the way of the language. You know 40 million people were 
killed in World War One. Ten million kill in World War You know that two 
million four hundred thousand be killed in the Korean W.u. So this language of 
the war. Any people who, when Usama bin Laden say I'm waging war because 
such such reason. now he declared it. But when you said I'm terrorist, I think it is 
deceiving peoples. Terrorists, enemy combatant. All thc5c definitions as CIA 
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you can make whatever you want. Now. you told me when l ask. about the 
witnesses, I'm not convinced that this related tu the matter. It is up to you. 
\.1aybe I'm convinced but your arc head and he [gesturing to Personal 
Representative] is not responsible, the other, because your are head of the 
committee. So, iinally it's your war but the problem is n11 definitions of many 
words. It would he widely definite that many people be <lppressed. Because war. 
for sure. there will be victims. \Vhen I said rm not happy that three thousand 
been killed in America. I feel sorry even. l don't like to kill children and the 
kids. Never Islam arc, give me green light to kill people». Killing. as in the 
Christianity. Jews. and Islam, arc prohibited. But there arc exception of rule 
when you arc killing people in Iraq. You said we have to do it We don't like 
Saddam. But this is the way to deal with Saddam. Same thing you are saying. 
Same language you use. I use. When you are invading two- thirds of Mexican, 
you call your war manifost destiny. It up to you to call it what you want. But 
other side arc calling you oppressors. If now George Washington. If now we 
were Jiving in the Revolutionary War and George Washington he being arrested 
through Britain. For sure he, they would consider him enemy combatant. But 
American they consider him as hero. "This right the any !{evolutionary War tht::y 
will be as George Washington or Britain. So we are con!>idered American Army 
hase~ which we have from seventies in Iraq. Also, in the Saudi Arabian, Kuwait, 
Qatar. and Bahrain. This is kind of invasion. but f'm no1 here to convince you. Is 
not or not but mostly speech is ask you to be fair with people. I'm don't have 
anything to say that I'm not enemy. This is why the language of any war in the 
world is killing. I mean the language of the war is victims. I don't like to kill 
people. I feel very sorry they bet:n killed kids in 9/11. What I will do? This is 
the language. Sometime l want to make great awakening between American to 
stop foreign policy in our land. I know American people arc torturing us from 
seventies. This is you see (Detainee hold out wrists) I have been tortured by CIA. 
Nobody will believe me. ff l say here or there the hang me, strip, for three 
months J know they talking about human rights. And I Know it is against 
American Constitution. against American laws. But the) said every law, they 
have exceptions, this is your had luck you been part of the exception of our laws. 
They got have something to convince me but we are doing same language. But 
we are saying we have Sharia law. but we have Koran. What is enemy 
combatant in my language'' 

(through translator): Allah forbids you not with regards to those who fight you not for your faith nor 
drive you out of your homes from dealing kindly and just!y with them. For Allah 
love those who are just. There is one more sentence. All..th only forbids you with 
regards to those who fight you Jor your faith tmd drive yc•u out of your homes and 
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support others in driving you out from turning to them for friendship and 
protection. It is such as tum to them in these circumstances that do wrong. 

So we are driving from whatever deed we do we ask about Koran or 1 ladith. We 
are not making up for us laws. When we need Fatwa from the religious we have 
to go back to see what they said scholar. To sec what thcv said yes or not. Killing 
is prohibited in all what you call the people of the book. Jews, Judaism, 
Christianity, and Islam You know the Ten Commandments very well. The Ten 
Commandments are shared between all of us. We all are <;erving one God. Then 
now kill you know 11 very well. But war language also we have language for the 
war. You have to kill. But you have to care if unintentiPnally or intentionally 
target if I have if I'm not at the Pentagon. I consider it is •>kay. If I target now 
when we target in USA we choose them military target. t'COnomical, and political. 
So. war central victims mostly means economical target. So if now American 
they know URL. He is in this house they don't care about his kids and his. They 
will just bomhard it. They will kill all of them and they did it. They kill wife of 
Dr. Ayrnan Zawahiri and his two daughters and his son i:1 one bombardment. 
They receive a report that is his house he. He had not been there. They killed 
them. They arrested m:r kids mtcntionally. 'Ibey arc kids. They been arrested for 
four months they had been ahused. So. for me I have pahcnce. I know I'm not 
talk about what's come to me. The American have human right. So, enemy 
combatant itself, it flexible word. So I think God knows '.hat many who been 
arrested. they been unjustly arrested. Otherwise, military throughout history 
know very well. They don't war will never stop. War start from Adam when 
Cain he killed Abel until now. It's never gonna stop kilhng of people. This is the 
way of lhe language. American start the Revolutionary War then they starts the 
Mexican then Spanish War then World War One. World War Two. You read the 
history. You know never stopping war. This is lite. But if who is enemy 
combatant and who is not? Finally, I finish statement. I'm asking you to he fair 
with other people. 

Does that conclude your statement. Khalid Sheikh Muhammad? 

Ye~. 

!SlfSCh'. 

(b )( 1) 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 

15-L-1645/000/218 

!SN #10024 
Enclosure (3) 
Page 25of27 



PRESIUENT: 

(b){1) 
(b)(3) NatSecAct 

TSi'!iCI1 

DETAINEE QUESTION & ANSWER 

Docs the Personal Representative haw any questions for the Detainee based on 
his statement? 

PERSONAL 
REPRESENTATIVE: No, Sir. 

PRESIDENT 

RECORDER: 

PRESIDENT: 

MEMBERS: 

PRESIDENT· 

PRESIDENT: 

PRESIDENT: 

PRESIDENT: 

PRESlDENT· 

PRESIDENT: 

Docs the Recorder have any questions for the Detainee? 

No, Sir. 

Do either of the Trihunal members wish to question the Detainee? 

No. ~ir. Nothing further Sir. 

Alright. 

CLOSING UNCLASSIFIED SESSION 

All unclassified evidence having been provided to the Tnhunal, this concludes the 
open trihunal session. 

Khalid Sheikh Muhammad, you shall be notified of the·: rihunal decision upon 
completion nfthc review of these proceed by the Comba1.ant Status Reviev. 
Tribunal convening authority in Washington. D.C. If, the Trihwial determines 
that you should not he classified as an enemy combatant you will he released to 
your home country as soon as arrangements can he made If however, the 
T rihunal detcnnincs your classi Ii cation as an enemy combatant you may be 
eligible for an Administrative Review Board hearing at :i future date. 

The Administrative Review Board will make an asscssm;:nt of whether there is 
continued reason to believe that you pose a threat to the l :nitcd States or its 
coalition partners in chc ongoing armed conflict against terrorist organizations 
such as al Qaeda and its affiliates and supporters or whether there are other 
factors hearing upon the need for continued detention. 

You will have the opportunity to be heard and to present relevant infonnation to 
the Administrative Review Board. You can present information from your family 
and friends that might help you at that Board. You arc encouraged to contact 
them as soon as possihle to hegin to gather infonnation that may help you. 

A military oflicer will be assigned at a later date to assis: you in the 
Administrative Review Board process. 
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ADJOURN OPEN SESSION 

PRESIDENT: The open session of this Tribunal hearing is adjourned. 

RECORDER: J"hc timt: is 2:4~pm. The date is 10 March 2007. 

RECORDER· All Rise. 

{The Tribunal withdrew from the hearing roomj 

AUTHENTICATION 

I certify the material contained in this transcript is a true and accurate verbatim rendering of the 
testimony and English language translation ofDt!taim.>e's words given durine the open session of the 
Combatant Status Review Tribunal oflSN 10024. (b)(6) 
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